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Minutes:                                                 Attachments: 1-14 

 
 
Chairman Weisz: opened the Hearing on HB 1378. 
 
Representative Jeffery J. Magrum:   Introduced HB 1378.  (Testimony #1)  
 
Judy DeWitz, a Disabilities Advocate with the North Dakota Protection and Advocacy Project (P&A) 
In support of HB 1378. Testimony # 2  
 
Rep. Rohr: On page 4 when you say that the percentage of guardianship is going up the 2802 is just 
adult guardianship? If you break that down, what percentage would be kids?  
 
Judy Dewitz: This is all adults. 
 
Rep. Rohr: What percentage would be children?  
 
Judy Dewitz: I don’t have that information. The information that I have here came from the Supreme 
Court Guardianship Program. That is where my numbers came from. 
 
Chairman Weisz: As a supporter do I have the ability to sign a lease for an apartment for that person 
or who has the legal authority, can I write checks on their account? Can I purchase things for them 
or can I only advise them? 
 
Judy Dewitz: The individual still makes their own decisions, so all those would be done by the 
individual, not the supporter, the Supporter is providing them information so they can make the 
decision whether to sign that lease or not. The plus part of this, if someone has a supporter helping 
them and they want to go to the doctor or to the bank to get some information. They might not believe 
them. That is the reason we put it into statute They do need a statute to carry weight that this is a true 
agreement.  
 
Rep. Skroch: These people that you visualize being these decision makers, these assistances who 
do you picture them being? Would they be family members? Or Social Services Workers?  
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Judy Dewitz: Family Members or friends, it might be a professional the family knows.  
Rep. Skroch: Then how would they be compensated? Would they be able to utilize any state dollars?  
Money from a social security check?  
 
Judy Dewitz: There is no money changing hands this is a voluntary type situation. 
  
Rep Skroch: In the story you shared with us about the girl with down syndrome that lost her privileges 
That disturbs me a bit, because guardians are supposed to allow for to stay in the wards control as 
possible. Just as a follow up to that, in ND I think we have more private guardians then we do 
corporate. In some states they have more of a State guardianship program. So I am wondering if the 
same situation should occur here if we have to be concerned about private guardianships as we do 
about Corporate Guardianships. 
 
Judy Dewitz: I am not that familiar with how to compare them. I would prefer having our attorney 
address the question. I worked on the intake line for Protection Advocacy for several years and we 
would get calls from guardians or from folks who had guardians and there was often a difference of 
opinion. If we can help people, make their own decisions in the long run they will be safer. If we can 
help them find out what is the right thing to do for them. Rather than have someone else say you will 
do this or you will not do that. Involving them in the decision making seems to make a better life for 
this person if they can make their own decisions. 
  
Representative Fegley: I was appointed for a individual who had mental problems, I asked the judge 
what my authority was and he said,” Everything, but you can’t tell him no.” Does the judge control this 
process or who appoints an individual as an advisor?  
 
Judy Dewitz: The individual themselves decides who the supporter is, there is no judge at all involved  
At all in this. The agreement does have to be witnessed so that it is considered to be a legal type of 
agreement, by a notary public or two witnesses’, that it was an agreement that was agreed to by both 
parties.   
  
David Boeck, a State employee and a lawyer for the Protection & Advocacy Project. Testimony #3 
One of the questions previously asked was if the supporter could sign a lease for an individual in 
general the answer is no, because the individual has to make the decision who still has the legal 
competence of course the individual could authorize them to sign a lease.  
 
Rep. Rohr: Can an individual do this without this bill in place?   
 
David Boeck, Yes.  
 
Rep. Rohr: If this bill would pass, is there any data that would be kept to be sure that we have 
accomplished the goal of less guardianship required or corporate. Is there any method that this is 
working for the state? 
 
David Boeck: The state Court Administrators Office keeps track of the number of guardianships in 
ND.  
 
Rep Skroch: On the second page of your testimony, you say that ND guardians have unnecessary 
broad decision making authority who gives a guardian that authority? 
 
David Boeck: A court does. A person says this person is not competent to make responsible 
decisions, and so the guardian needs to make them and they don’t articulate any difference between 
‘any kind of decisions.  
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Rep Skroch: Isn’t it true that before any decision is made there is a hearing in a courtroom, and isn’t 
it true that before that hearing there is a home visit by some usually appointed by the court and maybe 
operates out of a County Social Service office, and there is quite an in-depth investigation before that 
takes place, and then the court determines which of the rights and powers of that individual can be 
assumed by the guardian? 
 
David Boeck: Yes, there are hearings, there is an individual appointed by the court, not by the Social 
Service office but the individual has to be either a Social Worker or a nurse. There is also an attorney 
appointed by the court for the individual’s best interests. 
  
Rep. Skroch: I think there might be some variances in guardian’s authority and that, but in many 
specific cases, all powers stay in the hands of the ward unless necessarily need to be taken over by  
The guardians. I think that there is a little gray area here, and maybe needs a little more study. 
 
Representative Porter: Inside of this proposed piece of legislation we are putting a sample decision 
making agreement form into the century code. I am uncomfortable putting a sample form into the 
century code. Isn’t that best left to the courts and attorneys and the individuals to figure out or even 
associations and groups what form best works for them, rather than putting a sample form inside of 
the law?  
 
David Boeck: That is a good point. We do have a form, not a required form, but it helps individuals 
who don’t have a lawyer. 
 
Representative Porter; I understand that the form is not a sample form but an actual form that can 
be used. This one lists as a sample agreement. The advanced directive one is a legal document that 
can be signed and copied, pasted and used. Is your opinion that this is the one? 
  
David Boeck: The Advanced Directive Form is not required either. There are many Health Care 
Organizations that have their own version, some follow the exact statutory form but the purposed 
legislation is that the form could be fashioned for the proposed individual. 
 
Representative Porter 
Inside of the general provisions of chapter 30.1-26 where it talks about the alternate resource plan 
and it also talks about the least restrictive form of intervention. Is this piece an offshoot of that or is 
this a stand-alone separate situation? What I have heard so far is that these are the least restrictive 
forms, the plan is supposed to provide the least restrictive form, is this separate or added on? 
  
David Boeck: The petitioner states that there are no alternative resource plans that would work in 
place of Guardianship, but there is no real examination of what could be used, this would create an 
alternative that would be considered by courts or petitioner’s.  
 
Representative Damschen : I think that the person filling out this form certainty  needs some support. 
(read line 18 of David Boeck’s testimony) The supportive decision making does not relieve a person 
of legal obligations to provide services to an individual with a disability. So is the helper assuming 
legal obligations by entering into this agreement?  
 
David Boeck: What that refers to is the rights under the Human Rights Act or the Americans with 
Disabilities Act those don’t go away just because of the supportive decision making agreement. An 
individual will still have an obligation to make access to documents accessible to individuals who have  
Disabilities.  
 
Representative Damschen : Wouldn’t it be better to have power of attorney? 
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David Boeck: The difference in a Power of Attorney, it is a document that gives an agent decision 
making authority, this would not take away the rights of the individual to make decisions.  
 
Representative Tveit : I am a trustee I am a power of attorney for a completely competent individual 
In just knowing the questions that come before me from that individual and the decision making I help 
her with I would be scared to sign this document. Number one as a volunteer number two it looks like 
any decision making you would do as this advisor would put you in jeopardy. My question is who 
would challenge that?  
 
David Boeck: The liability of a supporter is addressed in one of the provisions of the bill, (page 2 
lines 24 to 26). The supporter is well protected for acts under good faith  
 
Representative Fegley: This whole process of having someone come in and advise who is outside 
the judge’s process under guardianship for a conservator. Is that correct?  
 
David Boeck: That is correct. There wouldn’t be a judge involved.  
 
Representative Fegley So I see this is a contract between two individuals and somewhere in the 
process there is going to have to be an education process to tell people that this is available.  
 
David Boeck: Yes. 
 
Representative Skroch: There certainly could be opportunities of abuse that develop in these 
relationships. Where there is abuse who would investigate this?  
 
David Boeck: I don’t see this as really affecting who would bear the burden of proof. There is an 
Adult protection agency. 
 
Representative Tveit: You said that this could be handled without this law. Why would we spend the 
time putting something into legal jargon and enforcing it? For what reason? 
 
David Boeck:  The reason is to put things in a language that the individual could understand, and 
that they could pick a person they trust.  
 
Representative Tveit: Why then would we have to put this into a law? 
 
David Boeck: Some states have this as a document but not part of the law.  
 
Julianne Horntvedt, Director of the North Dakota State Council on Development Disabilities. 
 Testimony # 4 In support of.  
 
Representative Porter: Do you think that this would increase confusion?  
 
Julianne Horntvedt: If this bill goes through, we would do a lot of training throughout the state 
Educationing the medical world and the banking world so they know this is a real document, and it is 
ok to use.  
 
Representative Porter: Wouldn’t this be the same as HIPA, a federal program? Isn’t this just 
common practice?  
 
Julianne Horntvedt: You are right this wouldn’t supersede HIPA . It is to come into a room so you 
have more power, so this person is here to support me. Having this document as an alternative to 
guardianship will really help people.  
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Representative Porter:  Are there any reported cases? Or are their problems that people need this 
extra weight? I have never heard there was a problem.  
 
Julianne Horntvedt; There are people in the room that can answer that question for you. 
 
Representative Skroch: If this bill would be passed, how would this be funded? And what module 
would you use for a common instruction? 
 
Julianne Horntvedt; We have funded this through Protection and Advocacy, which is a sister 
organization to us. We would have in person trainings, phone trainings. It would probably be another 
year or 2 of training.  Testimonies handed in #’s 5,6,7,8,9. 
 
Matthew McCleary, the Youth Coordinator for North Dakota Federation of Families for Children’s 
Mental Health. (NDFFCMH) In support of:  Testimony # 10 
 
Kirsten Dvorak, Executive Director of the Arc of ND, Testimony #11  
 
Representative Porter: It seems to me we don’t have a problem. 
 
Kirsten Dvorak: People that don’t have their parents around, this is where it would be helpful.  
 
Representative Rohr: So both of you would have to sign over health information via HEPA Laws.  
 
Kirsten Dvorak: That is correct.  
 
Trevor Vannett: Testimony # 12  
 
Julianne Horntvedt: I was asked by Shelly Peterson to let you know she supports this bill. But she 
wasn’t able to be here today.  
 
Vicki Peterson, A Family Consultant for Family Voices of ND. Testimony # 13  
Guardianship costs a lot of money, about 5 to 6 thousand dollars. I have been asked to leave meetings 
that my son goes to, I am the parent.  
 
Representative Tveit: I have a grandson with autism, but I believe you could still have this form filled 
out without legislation.  
 
Vicki Peterson: If you don’t pass this bill the paper doesn’t hold any weight. So they don’t have to 
recognize this paper.  
 
Roxane Romanick:  Designer Genes of North Dakota:  In support of HB 1378. Testimony handed 
in: # 14. No oral statement given.  
 
Opposed?  Seeing none.  
 
The Hearing is closed on HB 1378.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
 
Relating to supported decision making, a process for well informed, voluntary decisions by 
methods less restrictive than guardianship or conservatorship 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Weisz: Opened the Hearing on the HB1378. 
 
Representative Schneider: Moved for an amendment 19.0884.03001. 
 
Representative Porter: seconded 
 
Voice Vote:  Amendment Passed 
 
Representative Dobervich: Moved Do Pass as Amended 
 
Representative Ruby: Seconded 
 
A Roll Call Vote was taken Yes – 9  No – 4  Absent 1 
 
Do Pass as Amended Carries. 
 
Representative Schneider will carry HB 1378. 
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